

# THE IMPACT OF EMPLOYEES' JOB SATISFACTION ON MOTIVATION

**XU HAO** 

PERPUSTAKAAN UNIVERSITI MALAYSIA SABAH

## SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS UNIVERSITI MALAYSIA SABAH

2006





## THE IMPACT OF EMPLOYEES' JOB SATISFACTION ON MOTIVATION

## **XU HAO**

Dissertation submitted in partial fulfillment of the requirements for the degree of Master of Human Capital Management (MHCM)

# SCHOOL OF BUSINESS AND ECONOMICS UNIVERSITI MALAYSIA SABAH 2006



### UNIVERSITI MALAYSIA SABAH

#### BORANG PENGESAHAN STATUS TESIS @

JUDUL: KESAN KEPUASAN KERJA KE ATAS MOTIVASI PEKERJA

IJAZAH: Sarjana Pengurusan Modal Manusia

SESI PENGAJIAN: 2004-2006

Saya, XU HAO mengaku membenarkan tesis Sarjana ini disimpan di Perpustakaan Universiti Malaysia Sabah dengan syarat-syarat kegunaan seperti berikut:

- 1. Tesis adalah hakmilik Universiti Malaysia Sabah.
- Perpustakaan Universiti Malaysia Sabah dibenarkan salinan untuk tujuan pengajian sahaja.
- 3. Perpustakaan dibenarkan membuat salinan tesis ini sebagai bahan pertukaran antara institusi pengajian tinggi.
- 4. TIDAK TERHAD

Disahkan oleh

(Penulis: XU HAO)

(TANDATANGAN PUSTAKAWAN)

Alamat Tetap: No. 900 YanAn West Road ChangNing 200438 Shanghai China

(HJH. ARSIAH HJ. BAHRON )

Tarikh:

Tarikh: 21 Julai 2006

CATATAN: @ Tesis dimaksudkan sebagai tesis bagi Ijazah Doktor Falsafah dan Sarjana secara penyelidikan, atau disertasi bagi pengajian secara kerja kursus dan penyelidikan, auat Laporan Projek Sarjana Muda (LPSM)



#### DECLARATION

The materials in this dissertation are original except for quotations, excerpts, summaries and references which have been duly acknowledged.

XU HAO MATRIC NO: PS04-002(K)-083A 21 JULY 2006

i



#### ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

I would sincerely like to express my deepest gratitude to my supervisor Dr. HJH. ARSIAH HJ. BAHRON for her invaluable guidance and expert consultation through out my research.

I would sincerely like to express my deepest gratitude Dr. FUMITAKA FURUOKA that gives me much technological direction.

I would also like to express my genuine thanks to the participating employees of ChangQing switchboard Ltd for their cooperation. Meanwhile thank for my friends who help me collecting information for this research in China.

At last, thanks for my parents giving me continuous support, and encouragement.



#### ABSTRACT

The main objective of this research is to examine the nature of relationship between factors in job satisfaction and employees' motivation. Respondents of this research are managers and workman attached to ChangQing Switchboard Ltd in Shanghai China. The results show that employees have different level of job satisfaction with job design, supervision, coworkers, career development opportunities, and employment security.

The results also show that there is a strong positive correlation between job satisfaction and employees' motivation in the company. Meanwhile, the results of moderating variables such as age, gender, position and length of service do not moderate the relationship between job satisfaction and motivation.



#### KESAN KEPUASAN KERJA KE ATAS MOTIVASI PEKERJA

Objektif utama kajian ini adalah untuk menguji bentuk perhubungan di antara faktor-faktor kepuasan kerja dengan motivasi pekerja. Responden kajian ini adalah pengurus dan pekerja di ChangQing Switchboard Ltd di Shanghai China. Hasil kajian menunjukkan bahawa para pekerja mempunyai tahap kepuasan kerja yang berbeza dari sudut rekebantuk kerja, penyeliaan, rakan sekerja, peluang pembangunan kerjaya dan keselamatan pekerjaan. Hasil kajian juga menunjukkan bahawa wujud hubungan positif yang kuat di antara kepuasan kerja dan motivasi pekerja dalam syarikat berkenaan. Kajian juga menunjukkan bahawa umur, gender, jawatan dan tempoh berkhidmat tidak berperanan sebagai penyederhana dalam perhubungan di antara kepuasan kerja.



### TABLE OF CONTENTS

	TITLE	PAGE
DECLARATIO	N	i
ACKNOWLED	OGEMENTS	ii
ABSTRACT		
ABSTRAK		iv
TABLE OF CC	DNTENTS	v
LIST OF TABL	ES	viii
LIST OF FIGU	IRES	ix
KEY WORDS		x
CHAPTER 1	INTRODUCTION	
1.1	Overview of the study	1-2
1.2	Statement Problem	2-4
1.3	Research Objectives	5
1.4	Scope of the Study	5-6
1.5	Background of Organization	6
1.6	Significance of the Study	6-7
1.7	Definition of Key Terms in This Study	7-8
	1.7.1 Motivation	7
	1.7.2 Job Satisfaction	7
	1.7.3 Job Dissatisfaction	7
	1.7.4 Job Design	7
	1.7.5 Supervision	8
	1.7.6 Coworkers	8
	1.7.7 Career Development Opportunities	8
	1.7.8 Employment Security	8

## **CHAPTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW**

2.1	Introduction

2.2 Definition of Concepts



9

۷

	2.2.1	Motivation	9-10
	2.2.2		10-11
	2.2.3		11
	2.2.4	Job Design	11-13
	2.2.5	Supervision	13-14
	2.2.6	Coworker	14
	2.2.7	Career Development Opportunities	14-15
	2.2.8	Employment Security	15-16
2.3	Job At	ttitudinal Factors and Motivation	16-17
2.4	Age		17-18
2.5	Gende	er	18-19
2.6	Positio	on	19
2.7	Lengt	h of Service	20
2.8	Summ	пагу	20

## CHAPTER 3: RESEARCH FRAMEWORK AND METHODOLOGY

3.1	Introduction	21
3.2	Research Framework	21
3.3	Research Hypotheses	21-25
3.4	Research Design	25-29
	<ul><li>3.4.1 Instrument Design</li><li>3.4.2 Data Collection</li><li>3.4.3 Data Analysis Techniques</li></ul>	26-28 28 28-29
3.5	Summary	29
CHAPTER 4	RESULT	
4.1	Introduction	30
4.2	Profile of Respondents	30-31
4.3	Reliability of Measures	31-32
4.4	Descriptive Statistics	32-33
4.5	Multicollinearity Analysis	33
4.6	Hypotheses Testing	34
	<ul><li>4.6.1 Hypotheses Testing on Independent Variables</li><li>4.6.2 Hypotheses Testing on Moderating Variables</li></ul>	34-36 36-41

VI

MALAYSIA SABAL

vi

4.7 Summary

### **CHAPTER 5: DISCUSSION AND CONCLUSION**

5.1	Introduction	43
5.2	Recapitulation of the Study	43-44
5.3	Discussion	44-47
5.4	Recommendation	47-48
5.5	Limitation of the Study	48-49
5.6	Suggestions for Future Research	49
5.7	Conclusion	50-51

REFERENCE	52-55
APPENDICES	56
Appendix A: Questionnaire	56-62
Appendix B: Frequency Description	63-65
Appendix C: Reliability Analysis	66-71
Appendix D: Descriptive Statistics—Independent Variables	72-78
Appendix e: Regression	79-94



41-42

## LIST OF TABLES

TITLE	PAGE
Table 3.1: 5-point Scale Response on Independent Variables	27
Table 3.2 Statistical Tools for Hypothesis Testing	29
Table 4.1: Profile of Respondents	31
Table 4.2: Cronbach's Alpha for Variables	31
Table 4.3: Descriptive Statistics of the Variables	33
Table 4.4.1 Multiple Regression Analysis results on Independent Variables	34
Table 4.4.2: Hierarchical Regression Analysis on Age	37
Table 4.4.3: Hierarchical Regression Analysis on Gender	38
Table 4.4.4: Hierarchical Regression Analysis on Position	39
Table 4.4.5: Hierarchical Regression Analysis on Length of Service	40
Table 4.7: Research Result	41





## LIST OF FIGURE

## TITLE

## Figure 3.1: Theoretical Research Framework

PAGE

22

### **KEY WORDS**

Job Satisfaction, Motivation



٨

#### CHAPTER 1

#### INTRODUCTION

#### 1.1 Overview of the study

The era of globalization and technological innovation has increased competition among organizations. The pressures on organizations to add value, achieve sustained competitive advantage, and respond and adapt quickly and flexibly to new challenges and opportunities are relentless. The responses to these pressures have taken many forms, including new types of organization, lean, delayer, flexible, increasing reliance on information technology, and an emphasis on continuous improvement in terms of performance, quality and customer service. The quality of the human or intellectual capital possessed by organizations is seen generally as the key factor in differentiating them from their rivals and achieving superior results (Armstrong & Brown, 2001).

While people have always been central to organizations, today they have taken on an ever more central role in building a firm's competitive advantage. Particularly in knowledge-based industries such as software and information services, success increasingly depends on "people-embodied know-how", the knowledge, skills and abilities embedded in an organization's members. In fact, the key to a firm's success is based on establishing a set of core competencies—people and their skills, capability.

Meanwhile, when the employee's cognitive abilities become the prevalent in the



business industry, more and more organization noticed the importance in soft aspect which can sustain the competitive advantage continually. And many organization and institutes devoted into research in this field.

In all of the studies, motivation was one of the parts. It can relate many human capital issues in the business process. In brief, good motivation could improve job performance, then achieved good outcome, the employee would obtain more rewards and would be promoted, and the job satisfaction factors would be increased easily. It was a positive recurrence that realizes both organizational and individual goals.

This study focused on what antecedents influence and achieve the efficient employee motivation. Every organization has experienced facing unprogressive job performance. Manager used all kinds of methods to motivate the employees for improving poor performance. However, sometimes it could not get the original intention in strategy. Therefore, the study, focused on the analysis in antecedents influencing on the motivation especially in job aspect including working conditions, job design and some others. Try to find a rule between antecedents and determinants that could utilize the potent channel to achieve effective employee motivation.

#### 1.2 Statement Problem

To those concerned with studying the motivation influenced by job satisfaction factors, including job satisfaction and job dissatisfaction in organizational settings, motivation represents both interesting and important issues. It was relatively clear-cut acts to deliver the performance both for the person and for the organization. It was for this





reason that motivation has been investigated in a relatively large number of studies to date and are likely to remain a key focus of personnel research by psychologists.

This studies included interviews in which employees where asked what pleased and displeased them about their work. Herzberg found that the factors causing job satisfaction (and presumably motivation) were different from that causing job dissatisfaction. He developed the motivation-hygiene theory to explain these results. He called the satisfiers motivators hygiene factors, using the term "hygiene" in the sense that they are considered maintenance factors that are necessary to avoid dissatisfaction but that by themselves do not provide satisfaction.

Job satisfaction on the "the motivation of jobs and how these affect people's attitude and behaviour" (Wall & Martin, 1994) the research during the 1990s tested and refined the Job Motivation Model (JCM) presented by Hackman and Oldham (1976) that emerged as the major theory in this area. It is clear from this research that job attributes influence motivation and that intrinsic motivation, in particular, can be a powerful prod for effort and persistence.

Vroom (1964) defines job dissatisfaction as the effective orientation on the part of the individual's towards work roles which they are presently experienced. Job dissatisfaction consists of the feeling and satisfaction one has about one's job. All aspects of a particular job, good and bad, positive and negative are likely to contribute to the development of feelings of satisfaction or dissatisfaction.

The most typical categorization of facets (Hulin & Smith 1964) considers five: pay, promotion, coworker, supervision, and work itself. Locke (1976) adds a few other



facets: recognition, working conditions, and company and management. It is common for researchers to separate job dissatisfaction into intrinsic and extrinsic elements where pay and promotions are considered extrinsic factors and coworkers, supervision, and the work itself are considered intrinsic factor.

Therefore, by focusing on the impact of five factors which cause job satisfaction (job design, supervision, coworker, career development opportunities, and employment security) on motivation, it may be find some solutions to problem on this area. The main problem to be solved in this research is the extent to which job attitude influence motivation. This research, basically, will also try to answer to the foregoing research questions as outlined below:

- 1.2.1 Is there a relationship between job satisfaction with the job design and motivation?
- 1.2.2 Is there a relationship between job satisfaction with supervision and motivation?
- 1.2.3 Is there a relationship between job satisfaction with coworker and motivation?
- 1.2.4 Is there a relationship between job satisfaction with career development opportunities and motivation?
- 1.2.5 Is there a relationship between job satisfaction with employment security and motivation?
- 1.2.6 Are alternative age, gender, position and length of service play a role in moderating the relationship between job satisfaction factors and motivation?



#### 1.3 Research Objectives

There were two parts objectives of this research. The first part consisted of the main objective and the second was the supplementary objectives.

The main objectives of this research were as follows: (1) to examine whether the job satisfaction factors (job, supervision, coworker, career development opportunities and employment security) have positive impact on employee motivation. (2) to explore whether age , gender, position and length of service moderate the relationship between job satisfaction factor and motivation.

The supplementary objective of this research was below: the study was an integrated process that makes the organization understood the motivation and the correlative issues. A series of working gave me the practically experience to deal Human Resource functional work. Meanwhile, it could make the organization understand their employee clearly to achieve organizational goals.

#### 1.4 Scope of the Study

As what has been mentioned earlier above, although a number of studies have been conducted, however, very few have focused on the job satisfaction factors to motivation the employees in the organization. Therefore, this research conducted is to portray whether job satisfaction factors has a positive impact on employee's motivation.

Population of this research consisted of line managers and workman attached to ChangQing switchboard Ltd in Shanghai China. The selection of the respondents

5



was based on the simple random method.

#### 1.5 Background of Organization

Shanghai ChangQing Switchboard Ltd., established research, development, manufacturing, and marketing of telecom equipment. ChangQing Ltd. was established in 1989 by 12 people. Nowadays, the company and its subsidiary company have 1321 employees, averaging 27 years old, among whom 33% are university graduates, postgraduates, and doctors. The independently developed products by ChangQing cover such main telecom areas as exchanges, transmission, access network, wireless and mobile communication, data communication, and support network. The gross sales of company reach 56 million RMB yuan. Products are widely used in 29 provinces, municipalities, and regions. This company enjoys a complete system of production management and quality assurance and ISO9001 certification.

#### 1.6 Significance of the Study

This research not only contributed to the literature of factors of motivation, but also helped the managers improving the human resource practices.

The results of this research could help the managers in terms of multifarious information making a congruent decision to motivate organizational employees. Meanwhile, this process could reduce employees' work overload and stress, avoid unfair human resource practices. Furthermore, the company can increase productivity,

achieve competitive advantage by employee retention. The results of this research

could also serve as a reference for further investigations about motivation.

#### 1.7 Definition of Key Terms in This Study

The key variables used in this study have specific meaning and such definition in general context as well as in the context of this research are outlined below.

1.7.1 Motivation

The term "motivation" was originally derived from the Latin word movere. Nowadays, motivation has been defined as an inner drive or force that acts on humans to initiate or direct behaviour and influences the intensity of behaviour.

#### 1.7.2 Job Satisfaction

A very common way to understand job satisfaction is through need satisfaction theory, the best known being that of Maslow (1954). From this perspective, as lower-order needs (those related to simple survival) are met, workers will evaluate their jobs and careers according to how higher-order needs (those increasingly related to self-actualization) are satisfied.

1.7.3 Job Dissatisfaction

Vroom (1964) defines job dissatisfaction as the effective orientation on the part of the individual's towards work roles which they are presently experienced. Job dissatisfaction consists of the feeling and attitudes one has about one's job.

1.7.4 Job Design

Job design centers on "the motivation of jobs and how these affect people's attitude

and behaviour" (Wall & Martin, 1994)



#### 1.7.5 Supervision

Supervision is the technical competence and the interpersonal skills of one's immediate boss.

1.7.6 Coworkers

Coworkers are the extent to which coworkers are friendly, competent and supportive.

1.7.7 Career Development Opportunities

According to Arthur & Rousseau (1996); Greenhaus & Callanan (1994), career development opportunities are the sequence of employment-related positions, roles, activities and experiences encountered by a person.

1.7.8 Employment Security

According to Ivancevich and Matteson (2002), job security is the belief that one's position is relatively secure and continued employee with the organization is a reasonable expectation.



#### **CHAPTER 2**

#### LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 Introduction

This chapter dealt with the pervious study of the literature which relied to the job satisfaction and motivation in organizations. A review on some of the research studies of motivation in organizations and its variables are as outlined in this chapter.

#### 2.2 Definition of Concepts

Each of the concepts would be defined as to show the relationship of motivation and the variables. The researcher related these concepts with the findings in the latter chapters.

#### 2.2.1 Motivation

The term "motivation" was originally derived from the Latin word "movere", which means "to move". What is needed is a description that sufficiently covers the various components and processes associates with how human behaviour is activates. A brief selection of representative definitions indicates how the term has been used:

...the contemporary (immediate) influence on the direction, vigor, and persistence of action. (Atkinson, 1964)

...how behaviour gets started, is energized, is sustained, is directed, is stopped, and what kinds of subjective reaction is present in the organism while all this



...a process governing choice made by person or lower organism among alternative forms of voluntary activity. (Vroom, 1964)

...motivation has to do with a set of independent/dependent variable relationships that explain the direction, amplitude, and persistence of an individual's behaviour, holding constant the effects of aptitude, skill, and understanding of the task, and the constraints operating in the environment. (Campbell & Pritchard, 1976)

#### 2.2.2 Job Satisfaction

Herzberg *et al.* (1959) proposed that an employee's motivation to work is best understood when the respective attitude of that employee is understood. That is, the internal concept of attitude which originates from a state of mind, when probed, should reveal the most pragmatic information for managers with regard to the motivation of workers.

The order of these questions is empirically methodical and, for Herzberg, the final question, which would demonstrate the relationship between attitude and subsequent behavior, was particularly important. In response to the "fragmentary nature" of previous scholarship, the combination of the three questions resulted in a single unit of study - the factors-attitudes-effects (F-A-E) complex. Herzberg described his new approach as idiographic (Herzberg *et al.*, 1959). Contrary to the statistical or nomothetic approach which places more emphasis on a group's interaction with a



particular variable, the idiographic view was based on the premise that the F-A-E complex should be studied within individuals.

#### 2.2.3 Job Dissatisfaction

Vroom (1964) defines job dissatisfaction as the effective orientation on the part of the individual's towards work roles which they are presently experienced. Job dissatisfaction consists of the feeling and attitudes one has about one's job. All aspects of a particular job, good and bad, positive and negative are likely to contribute to the development of feelings of satisfaction or dissatisfaction.

The most typical categorization of facets (Hulin & Smith 1964) considers five: pay, promotion, coworker, supervision, and work itself. Locke (1976) adds a few other facets: recognition, working conditions, and company and management. It is common for researchers to separate job dissatisfaction into intrinsic and extrinsic elements where pay and promotions are considered extrinsic factors and coworkers, supervision, and the work itself are considered intrinsic factors

#### 2.2.4 Job Design

Job design centers on the "the characteristics of jobs and how these affect people's attitudes and behaviour" (Wall & Martin, 1994) the research during the 1990s tested and refined the Job Characteristics Model (JCM) presented by Hackman and Oldham (1976) that emerged as the major theory in this area. It is clear from this research that job attributes influence motivation and that intrinsic motivation, in particular, can be a

#### Reference

- Adam, L. L. M. & Gale, D., 1982. Solving the Quandary between Questionnaire Length and Response Rate in Research. *Research in Higher Education*, Vol. 17, p231-240.
- Armstrong, M. & Brown, D., 2001. New Dimensions in Pay Management. London, CIPD.
- Arthur, M. B. and Rousseau D. M., 1996. A Career Lexicon for the 21st Century. Academy of Management Executives 10, no. 4 p28-39.
- Ashford, S. J., 1986. Feedback-Seeking in Individual Adaptation: A Resource Perspective, Academy of Management Journal, No. 29, Vol. 3 p78-83.

Atkinson J. W., 1964. An Introduction to Motivation. Princeton, NJ: Van Nostrand.

- Black, B. & DiNitto, D., 1994. Volunteers Who Work with Survivors of Rape and Battering: Motivations, Acceptance, Satisfaction, Length of Service, and Gender Differences, Journal of Social Service Research 20: p73–97.
- Burchell, R. W., and Nancy N., 1997. Fiscal Impacts of Alternative Land Development Patternsin Michigan: the Costs of Current Development versus Compact Growth. Prepared for the Southeast Michigan Council of Governments.
- Campbell, J. P. & Pritchard, R. D., 1976. Motivation theory in Industrial and Organizational Psychology. In M. D. Dunnette (Ed.), Handbook of industrial and organizational psychology (pp. 63-130). Chicago: Rand-McNally.
- Conger, K. J., M. A. Rueter, and R. D., 2000. The Role of Economic Pressure in The Lives of Parents and Their Adolescents: The Family Stress Model. In Negotiating adolescence in times of social change, ed. L. J. Crockett and R. K. Silbereisen, 201–23. New York: Cambridge University Press.
- Cordery, J. L., & Smith, L.M., 1991. Attitudinal and Behavioral Effects of Autonomous Group Working: A Longitudinal Field Study. Academy of Management Journal, 34, p464-476.
- Deci, E. L., & Ryan, R. M., 1985. Intrinsic Motivation and Self-Determination in Human Behavior. New York: Plenum.
- Greenhaus, J. and Callanan, G., 1994 Career Management, 2nd edn. Philadelphia: Dryden Press.



- Hackman, J. R. & Oldham, G. R., 1975 Development of The Job Diagnostic Survey, Journal of Applied Psychology, Vol.60, No.2, , pp.159-170.
- Haire, M., Ghiselli, E., & Porter, L., 1966. *Managerial Thinking: An International Study*. New York/London/Sydney: John Wiley.
- Hale, S., 1995. Controversies in Sociology: A Canadian Introduction (2nd Ed.). Toronto: Copp Clark Ltd
- Herzberg, F., 2003. One More Time: How Do You Motivate Employees? Harvard Business Online January 1.
- Howard, J. & Frink, D., 1996. The Effects of Organizational Restructure on Employee Satisfaction. *Group and Organization Management* 21(3): p278-303.
- Hulin, C. & P. Smith, 1964. Sex Differences in Job Satisfaction. Journal of Applied Psychology 48:88-92.
- Hulin, C. L., 1968. Effects of Changes in Job Satisfaction Levels on Employee Turnover. Journal of Applied Psychology. 52, p135-139.
- Ilgen, D. R., & Hollenbeck, J. R., 1992. The structure of work: Job design and roles. In M.D. Dunnette and L.M. Hough (Eds.), Handbook of Industrial and Organizational Psychology, (Vol. 2, 2nd ed., pp 165-207), Palo Alto, CA: Consulting Psychologists Press.
- Ivancvich, J. M., & Matteson, M. T., 2002 Organizational behavior and management. Boston: McGraw-Hill.
- Kirkman, B. L., and Rosen, B., 1997. A Model of Work Team Empowerment. Research in Organizational Change and Development, R. W. Woodman and W.A. Pasmore (eds.), Greenwich, CT: JAI Press.
- Kraimer, M. L., Wayen, S. J., Liden, R.C. & Sparrowe, R.T., 2001. Understanding Full-time Employees' Reactions to The Use of Temporary Workers: The Role of Job Security. Presented at the Academy of Management in Washington, DC.
- Langfred, C. W., 2000. The Paradox of Self-Management: Individual and Group Autonomy in Work Groups. *Journal of Organizational Behavior*, 21, 563-585.
- Leimer, D. R., and Petri., 1981. Cohort-Specific Effects of Social Security Policy. National Tax Journal, Vol. 34 (March), p9-28.



- Locke, E. A., 1976. The Nature and Causes of Job Satisfaction. In M. D. Dunnette Ed.), Handbook of industrial and organizational psychology (pp. 1297-1343). Chicago: Rand-McNally.
- Locke, E. A., & Latham, G. P., 1990. A Theory of Goal Setting and Task Performance. Upper Saddle River, NJ: Prentice Hall.
- Malone, T.W., and Lepper, M. R., 1987. Making Learning Fun: A Taxonomy of Intrinsic Motivations for Learning. In R.E. Snow and M.J. Farr (Eds.), Aptitude, Learning and Instruction III: Conative and Affective Process Analyses. Hillsdale, N.J.: Erlbaum.
- Maslow, A. H., 1957. Motivation and Personality. Harper & Row, New York.
- McClelland, D. C., 1987. Human Motivation. Cambridge, NY: Cambridge University Press.
- Morse, N. L., & Weiss, R. S., 1955. The Function and Meaning of Work and Job. American Sociological Review, 20, p191–198.
- Ollenburger, J. C., and H. A. Moore., 1992. Sociology of Women: The Intersection of Patriarchy, Capitalism and Colonization. USA Prentice Hall. P1-70.
- Oshagbemi, T., 2000. How Satisfied Are Academics with Their Primary Tasks of Teaching, Research and Administration and Management. International Journal of Sustainability in Higher Education, 1(2), p124-136.
- Robert, K. & Angelo, K., 2001. Organizational Behavior, 5th ed. Irwin McGraw-Hill, New York, NY.
- Ronen, S. 1978. Job Satisfaction and The Neglected Variable of Job Seniority. Human Relations, 31: p297-308.
- Rosow, J. M. and Zager, R., 1984. Employment Security in A Free Society, New York: Pergamon Press.
- Savery, J. R, & Duffy, T. M., 1996. Problem Based RLearning: An Instructional Model and Its Constructivist Framework. In B. Wilson (Ed.), Constructivist learning environments: Case studies in instructional design (pp. 135-148). Englewood Cliffs, NJ: Educational Technology Publications.
- Smith, P. C., & Hulin, C. L., 1969. The Measurement of Satisfaction in Work. Chicago, Rand McNally.



- Thomas, K. W. & Velthouse, B. A., 1990. Cognitive Elements of Empowerment, Academy of Management Review, Vo1.15, 243-251.
- Vaus, D. & McAllister, I., 1991. Gender and Work Orientation. Work and Occupations, 18(1), p72-93.

Vroom, V., 1964. Work and Motivation. New York: Wiley.

Zhang L. & Qin Z., 2001. "Competitive Stress Impacts The Labour Market" Journal of China Economy Weekly. Vol. 21. p23-25.

